
Council Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

Regular Meeting 
April 2, 2012 

 
 

The State College Borough Council met in a regular meeting on Monday, April 2, 2012, in the State 
College Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street, State College, PA.  Mayor Goreham called the 
meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. 
 
Present: Elizabeth A. Goreham, Mayor 
  Donald M. Hahn, President of Council 

Thomas E. Daubert 
Catherine G. Dauler 
Ronald L. Filippelli 
Sarah Klinetob 
Peter Morris 
James L. Rosenberger 

 
Also present:  Terry J. Williams, Borough Solicitor; Thomas J. Fountaine, Manager; Sharon K. Ergler; 
Assistant Borough Secretary; Thomas R. King, Chief of Police; Carl R. Hess, Planning Director; Mark A. 
Whitfield, Director of Public Works; Anne Messner, Acting Zoning Officer; Charles DeBow, Parking 
Manager; Roger A. Dunlap, Assistant Borough Manager; Brendan McNally, UPUA Student 
Representative; and numerous residents and members of the media. 
 
Public Hour – Mayor Goreham introduced Joe Nichisti, the newly elected OCSU President.  
 
Public Hearings 
 
R-OO Amendments at 254 East Beaver Avenue – Mr. Hess briefly outlined the developer’s proposal, as 
of Council’s last meeting, which incorporated mixed use on the first floor, a 20’ front setback, onsite 
parking with one space for every 800 s.f. of gross floor area for dwelling units, 45’ building height by right 
and 65’ with a bonus of three incentives.   
 
Mr. Hahn asked if the one story reveal is at 65’, 55’ or 45’.  Mr. Hess said it is 65’ and the developer 
would need three out of four incentives in order to build the additional floor. 
 
Mr. Rob Ponder, architect for the developer, explained that the property owners are in support of the 
recommendations made.  He added that it is the developer’s intent to move their corporate headquarters 
back into the office space of this building.  The first floor would be entirely retail with space for six tenants 
and parking at the rear of the building.   
 
Mr. Otto Grupp, 108 West Ellen Ave., Langhorne PA, a member of Phi Kappa Sigma Alumni Association, 
said he is opposed to this structure being built next to their fraternity. Mr. Grupp said Phi Kappa Sigma 
was the second fraternity on campus in 1890.  Thousands of young men have graduated from his 
fraternity.  Presently, there is a stately row of fraternities along East Beaver Avenue, which serve as a 
charming attribute to the community.  He said he is not in favor of putting this square box type of building 
next door to their fraternity.  Furthermore, Mr. Grupp said Beaver Canyon has been the site of a few riots 
and by adding additional 200 or 300 students alongside their 45 fraternity members could be a huge 
detriment to the adjacent fraternities.   He added that he has spoken to the alumni association of Sigma 
Alpha Epsilon and they felt this building would encroach onto the campus life home atmosphere that 
these fraternities offer.  
 
Mr. Grupp added that he has spoken with the alumni of Phi Delta Theta, which was the house Penn State 
University purchased and tore down three to four years ago and their National Director said their fraternity 
is very interested in re-establishing themselves on the Penn State campus.  This particular fraternity has 



more than 1,000 graduates and they are strongly behind a re-colonization of their chapter.  Mr. Grupp 
said this fraternity would be happy to offer the property owner/developer a realistic fair market value for 
the property. 
 
Ms. Peg Hambrick, 305 East Hamilton Avenue, said the proposed ordinance, as written, permits a 6-story 
building, which would extend Beaver Canyon.  She said this proposed building does not serve our 
community well.  The incentives detailed in the ordinance do not enhance our quality of life in the 
Highlands Neighborhood.  Since 1994, the Highlands neighborhood has gone from 15% to now 11.6% in 
owner-occupied homes. 
 
The continuing trend is not good.  The Borough’s Neighborhood Sustainability Report indicates that the 
Borough’s revenue growth does not meet the Borough’s expenditures.  This building would adversely 
impact State College.  By allowing this building, Council is increasing the number of students living 
downtown but not preserving and protecting the residents.  The Borough’s objective is to sustain and 
survive over time and to produce stable properties not more student rentals.  The developer’s request for 
this property has been going on for five years.  The Borough has spent valuable resources on this project.  
She asked Council to look at the parcel and to rezone it in a way that serves the entire community. 
 
Mr. Thomas Gesell, 604 East Hamilton Avenue, said to build this building with be preposterous when you 
are considering adding more population density in this area.  This property is ground zero of the last 
several riots that have occurred downtown.  He said anything that adds to the population, traffic, etc. is a 
very bad idea and it could lead to more riots.   
 
Mr. Noah Coleman, 301 South Garner Street, a property and business owner in the Highland’s 
neighborhood, said their neighborhood is beyond the salvaging point.  By allowing this type of 
development to continue only encourages Borough residents to move outside the neighborhood or 
outside the Borough.  Mr. Coleman said he likes the State College community; however, he personally 
does not like where he lives.  He said approving this development will only increase his type of departure 
from the neighborhood more quickly. 
 
Mr. Joe Nichitsi, 255 East Beaver Avenue, said he was speaking from a student’s perspective and noted 
that student housing downtown is in high demand.  By allowing this building to be built, it will greatly help 
out students.  Property rents have increased $100 over the last year.  He said the proposed building is an 
aesthetically pleasing building and by replacing the existing building it will help the view of State College. 
 
Mr. Brendan McNally, UPUA Student Representative and resident at 340 East Beaver Avenue, said the 
UPUA passed a resolution supporting this zoning request.  He said he commends Council for its thorough 
review and recommendations.  He noted this building will expand the student housing downtown, create 
new commercial spaces, as well, as relocating HFL’s corporate office downtown.  Mr. McNally said to 
touch on some of the issues raised by residents; he can certainly understand their concerns.  He added 
that this building is a vast improvement over the current building.  The existing building did not match the 
architecture of the Borough.  The development plan, in its present form, meets the goals of developing a 
mixed use building.   
 
Mr. Hahn made a motion to defer additional discussion on the proposed R-00 amendment to Council’s 
April 9 work session.  He said he has heard a lot of good comments, both for and against this project, and 
would like to discuss it further.  Mr. Morris seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Klinetob asked Mr. Ponder if he would be attending next week’s meeting because she had a couple 
of questions.  First, what were the three incentives chosen by the developer?  Mr. Ponder said 
underground parking, a mixed-use building and parking based on the floor area ratio.  She also asked Mr. 
Ponder if he knew what the rent would be for units within the proposed building and how many students 
would be living in the building.  Mr. Ponder said he has not come up with the final number of students who 
could occupy this building, nor has he begun to calculate out the cost of rent for these units. 
 



Mr. Daubert said he would like this item to continue to move forward with Council’s intent to enact the 
amendment at their April 16 meeting. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Proposed Rezoning of 323 West Fairmount Avenue 
 
Ms. Messner explained that Dan and Susan Venegoni-Lestz, the owners of 323 West Fairmount Avenue, 
had requested, in December 2011, to have their property rezoned from R-2 to R-OA. 
 
Ms. Venegoni-Lestz said she and her husband started this request in November 2011.  She said when 
they moved into the neighborhood sixteen years ago, there was a healthy mix of housing types, 
businesses, etc.  However, home ownership has now declined and she said she feels that their safety 
has been compromised.  There has been a 30% increase in population.  Rental housing permits are 
renewed year after year regardless of whether or not the properties are occupied and then these permits 
are transferred when a property is sold.  Ms. Venegoni-Lestz said abandonment of a rental property is 
very difficult to prove.  She said the West Fairmount Avenue School has been lost since there are not 
enough families with children in the neighborhood to support it.  She briefly reviewed the owner and/or 
rental status of all of the properties adjacent to their property. 
 
Ms. Venegoni-Lestz said she and her husband are not planning to go anywhere and, in fact, they plan to 
stay in their home.  However, they felt it was important to preserve their options.  She noted that currently 
their property can only be a single-family residence; however, the R0-A district is nothing new in their 
neighborhood.   
 
Ms. Venegoni-Lestz said she shared much of the information she just shared with Council to the 
Highlands Civic Association in November and, at that time, there were no objections from the property 
owners in attendance.  She stated that her in-laws have lived on this block of Fairmount Avenue for the 
past 40-45 years.  No one will want to buy her home anytime in the future if all properties are being turned 
into student housing.   
 
Ms. Sherri Garoian, 300 West Fairmount Avenue, said she and her husband have met with Dan and 
Susan Venegoni-Lestz, wondering what they could do with their property. She acknowledged that a lot 
has changed in their neighborhood, including the atmosphere.  Ms. Garoian said she has lived in this 
property for the past 26 years.  While she appreciates the location, the neighborhood has changed and it 
has become more frustrating at times because of the noise factor.  Ms. Garoian said she and her 
husband fully support the request for the rezoning.  In fact, if their rezoning gets approved, Ms. Garoian 
said she may be coming to Council with the same request. 
 
Mr. Johan Zwart, 420 South Burrowes Street, said he is in full support of the rezoning request.  He said 
he personally regrets that the Borough did not pursue an appeal of a student home designation just down 
the block from his house.  He asked if it was Council’s goal to make people in State College happy or to 
make money. 
 
Mr. Filippelli made a motion to refer the rezoning request for 323 West Fairmount Avenue to Council’s 
April 9, work session for further discussion.  Mr. Hahn seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Renaming of Fraser Plaza  
 
Ms. Jo Dumas, 516 North Atherton Street, she both she and her husband, Charles, are very much in 
support of Peter Morris’ proposal to honor the late Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  She said it would 
only be fitting and proper to honor such a man.  State College was blessed to have him in 1965, when he 
came to the University and spoke to over 8,000 students.  Dr. King was also the recipient of the Nobel 
Peace Prize and was a great American patriot. 
 



Ms. Hillary Barlow, 126 East Nittany Avenue, said she would like to propose an alternate to name Fraser 
Plaza after.  She suggested renaming the plaza after the first African-American Penn State University 
football player, Wallace Triplet.  Several years ago, other college teams refuse to play Penn State 
because Mr. Triplet was on the team but Penn State stood its ground and made it known they would play 
only if Mr. Triplet was part of the team and was allowed to play. 
 
Mr. Richard Gold, 134 East Doris Avenue, said he supported the motion to dedicate and memorialize Dr. 
King.  He said Dr. King represented the sons and daughters of the working class and he spoke on behalf 
of fairness for all people.  Until the end of the World War II, black workers were not permitted to work in 
the steel plants. 
 
Ms. Carol Gold, 134 East Doris Avenue, said she was very much in support of dedicating Fraser Plaza 
after Dr. King.  Dr. King had a vision for the world and for solving conflicts.  Ms. Gold said she envisioned 
the space at Fraser Plaza with art statutes and plaques dedicated to others who have pursued civil rights, 
anti-poverty, and those pushing for labor working unions.  This location could become a place where 
people go to learn the history about these fine people that have paved the way for the rest of us. 
 
Mr. Brendan McNally, 340 East Beaver Avenue, commented that he thought it was a great idea to 
rename the plaza after Dr. King but also offered an alternative with local impact.  He suggested renaming 
the plaza after Seth Williams, the current District Attorney in Philadelphia.  Mr. Williams was elected into 
office in 2010.  He is the first African-American to be elected in the state of Pennsylvania.   
 
Mr. Peter Shaw, 221 Ellen Avenue, said it would be appropriate to name Fraser Plaza after Dr. King.  He 
noted that Dr. King had a massive effect on places like State College. 
 
Mr. Filippelli made a motion to have Council discuss the renaming of Fraser Plaza at its April 9 work 
session.  Mr. Morris seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Noise Control Ordinance Amendments  
 
Chief King briefly explained the two proposed amendments.  He noted that a question came up about the 
issuance of a disorderly conduct under the PA Crimes Code.  A noise violation may have less effect on a 
person’s record because it would be charged as an ordinance violation.  Regardless of whether it is a 
violation of a local ordinance or the PA Crimes Code, the violation still gets docketed with the Magisterial 
District Justices.  The only difference would be citing the PA Crimes Code title versus an ordinance 
number.  He said he wanted to clarify the erroneous information he provided to Council in February. 
 
Ms. Venegoni-Lestz, 323 West Fairmount Avenue, said she was in support of these amendments.  She 
stated it would be important to cite the individuals responsible for the noise.  She asked if noise violations 
occur and violators are issued citations, are points still assigned to the property where they occur.   Chief 
King answered that enforcement would be against the violator and points would still be assessed against 
the property owner. 
 
Mr. Noah Coleman, 301 South Garner Street, said he would like Council to consider banning the use of 
gas-powered leaf blowers because they name too much noise and the decibel level of these blowers 
must be well over the legal limit.  Chief King said under the proposed amendments the measuring of the 
decibel level of loud and/or noisy equipment would go away, since that is not a clear or accurate way of 
measuring acceptable noise levels.  Mr. Coleman said he has an overzealous gardener as a neighbor 
who does not care what time he runs his leaf blower. 
 
Chief King said presently there is an exemption for lawn garden tools, such as leaf blowers when they are 
following the guidelines from the manufacturer; however, if the equipment is altered in anyway, the 
Borough could take enforcement action, between the hours of 7 a.m. and 9 p.m.   
 



Mr. Ron Deck, 400 East Hamilton Avenue, President of the Highlands Civic Association, said he is in 
favor of the proposed amendments, especially since the Highlands neighborhood is at ground zero where 
most of the noise occurs. 
   
Ms. Julianne Hagerty, 833 West College Avenue, raised two concerns.  She said she would prefer the 
police continue to measure noise by using the noise level to determine the decibel level.  She said if the 
noise can be heard clearly from the street, then it should be subject to a warning or violation.  Ms. 
Hagerty said she had done some undergraduate work at Michigan State and by raising the cost of noise 
violations; it did not reduce the number of violators.  The students would determine who was going to take 
the responsibility and burden if police were called and a violation was issued.  She said even though the 
City of East Lansing raised the fines associated with noise violations, it did not reduce the number of 
incidents and/or parties. 
 
Chief King said presently all enforcement of the noise ordinance is under the disorderly conduct 
classification in the PA Crimes Code.  A person is not permitted to create unreasonable noise and the 
evaluation and assessment is by a subjective realm.  Police officers have to provide the level of evidence 
to the courts why noise is unreasonable.  First an officer must consider the totality of the circumstances, 
i.e. the time of day and/or day or week, has the individual been warned before, etc. 
 
Mr. Jay Bartlett, 628 Fairway Road, said he was encouraged to hear some of the Chief’s clarifications in 
determining the criteria of a noise violation.  He commented that the information should be made known 
to citizens what their obligations are in terms of accommodating the desires of their neighbor’s peace and 
quiet.  He felt the criteria should be written into the ordinance itself and not just a part of the Police 
Department’s procedure manual. 
 
Mr. Brian Fowler, 127 North Sparks Street #15, said he is a graduate student working on acoustics and 
he and his partner, Eric Mitchell, have been working on this ordinance arid they are looking at the 
proposed changes.  He said he is working to create a noise map for State College.  If an officer would 
receive a complaint for noise and goes to the property in question and takes a measurement of the noise 
using a meter, and the noise is 15 decibels above what it normally is in this neighborhood, then the noise 
is too loud and a warning or violation is warranted.  Mr. Fowler said he has been accompanying two 
Borough police officers when on patrol and getting noise levels of any noise complaints they have been 
receiving.  He noted that noise heard at 2 p.m. or at 5 p.m. is very different from noise being heard at 11 
p.m. or 2 a.m. but he and his partner are trying to come up with different methods for measuring 
acceptable levels of noise. 
 
Mr. Eric Mitchell, 127 North Sparks Street #15, said the words plainly audible are acceptable as with 
someone with normal hearing.  As we age, and are exposed to different things, often time’s people lose 
their hearing.  Any prolonged exposure to noise can cause temporary or permanent hearing damage.   
Normal hearing is very subjective.  
  
Mr. Andrew Patterson, 833 West College Avenue, said he has problems with the amendment, specifically 
with the fines themselves.  By trying to charge more money for fines is not going to help, in his opinion.  
He said he would be hard pressed to find any student who could afford a $1,000 fine.  Mr. Patterson said 
the fine structure seems too excessive for a group of students who get loud on occasion.  He said there 
needs to be a more objective way to measure noise.  He said if there were six people sitting on his porch 
talking and someone walked or drove by and thought they were talking too loud, would they be issued a 
violation. 
 
Mayor Goreham closed the public hearings at 9:08 p.m. 
 
Mr. Filippelli made a motion to discuss the noise ordinance amendments at Council’s April 9 meeting.  Mr. 
Hahn seconded the motion.   
 



Mr. Daubert said he would like some information on the administrative guidelines placed in the ordinance 
and what the standard operating procedures are for noise violation.  For example, if someone stands at 
the end of a property and can hear someone’s radio playing on their porch is that a violation.  What if a 
child was practicing a musical instrument in the basement of their house and the neighbor calls in to 
complain, is that a violation of the ordinance.  He said these amendments need a lot more discussion 
before putting them up for a vote. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Consent Items 
 
Mr. Daubert made a motion to approve the consent items.  Mr. Hahn seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 
 
 Appoint Donald Hahn, Ronald Filippelli, and the Borough Manager to the Committee to discuss 

the Paterno Way renaming with College Township Representatives.   
 Award the bid for bituminous patch material for the 2012 patching season to HRI, Inc., the low 

bidder meeting specifications, in the total amount of $75,355 for all items 1-8 of the bid.   
 Approve the use of various downtown sidewalks on Sunday, October 21, 2012, from 2 p.m. to 4 

p.m. for the annual Crop Walk to benefit Church World Service and the State College Food Bank.  
 Approve the use of the Orchard Park Bicycle Path from Welch Pool to Blue Course Drive for the 

8th Annual Centre Region Parks & Recreation Youth Triathlon on Saturday, July 21, 2012*, from 
8 a.m. to 11 a.m. *This event was previously approved; however, the date of the event has 
changed.  

 Approve the use of Sidney Friedman Park on Thursday, June 14, 2012, from 5 p.m. to 10 p.m. for 
Schlow Centre Region Library’s Summer Reading Program concert in the park.  

 Use of various sidewalks in the Borough for a Take Back the Night March scheduled for 
Wednesday, April 18, 2012, from 6 p.m. to 11 p.m. 

 Use of Fraternity Row between East Foster Avenue and East Fairmount Avenue for the Greek 
Week Kick-off Party on Saturday, April 14, 2012, from 11 a.m. to 5 p.m.   
 

General Policy and Administration 
 
Cable TV Franchise Ordinance – Mr. Hahn withdrew himself from the discussion or vote on this agenda 
item because of a conflict of interest, since his wife is an employee of C-NET and a member of the Centre 
Area Cable Consortium. 
 
Mr. Filippelli made a motion to approve the Cable TV Franchise Agreement.  Ms. Dauler seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 6-0-1 (Mr. Hahn abstained).   
 
Noise Ordinance Waiver – HRI, Inc.   
 
Mr. Whitfield explained that the Borough received a request to waive the noise ordinance to allow HRI, 
Inc. to work at night on the Whitehall Road project. 
 
Mr. Hahn made a motion to deny the request.  Mr. Morris seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 
 
Rezoning Request for 254 East Nittany Avenue and 410 Locust Lane 
 
Mr. Fountaine explained that he recently received a request from Architect Albert Drobka to rezone the 
properties at 254 East Nittany Avenue and 410 Locust Lane.   
 
Mr. Rosenberger made a motion to refer the request to the Planning Commission for review and 
recommendation.  Ms. Klinetob seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 



 
Planning and Zoning 
 
Two Lot Subdivision 1275 Penfield Road – PSU would like to subdivide this lot.   
 
Mr. Hess explained that the Pennsylvania State University acquired the property at 1275 Penfield Road 
and they are requesting to subdivide the parcel into two lots, which would allow the construction of a 
single-family home on the parcel fronting Inverary Place. 
 
Mr. Hahn made a motion to approve the subdivision.  Mr. Rosenberger seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Items of Information 
 
Staff’s Report – Centre Region has been awarded a gold recognition in the State’s Electronics Challenge.   
 
UPUA Student Representative – Mr. McNally announced that Courtney Lennartz is the new UPUA 
President.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sharon K. Ergler 
Assistant Borough Secretary 
 
 


